
The open proceedings of this meeting are being recorded 

 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
CALIFORNIA STATE POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY, POMONA 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, September 16, 2021 
10:30 am – 12:00 pm 

 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://cpp.zoom.us/j/81862565683 

Meeting ID: 818 6256 5683  
 

AGENDA 
    
    
I. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC Who may or may not be commenting on a specific item or 

making a general comment. 
    
II. CONSENSUS ACTION ITEMS 

Items in this section are considered to be routine and acted on by the committee in one motion. Each item of the Consent 
agenda approved by the committee shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended. Any 
committee member may request that a consent item be removed from the consent agenda to be considered as a separate 
action item.  If no additional information is requested, the approval vote will be taken without discussion. An “A” distinguishes 
items requiring approval. 

   Page 
 1. Audit Committee Minutes February 3, 2021  

ACTION: Approval 
David Speak, Chair 2  

   
III. GENERAL UPDATES 

 
  

 2. Executive Director’s Report  Jared Ceja 3 - 4 
    
IV. ACTION ITEMS 

 
 

 3. External Child Care Center Audit 2020-2021 
ACTION: Approval 

Joanne Mathew 
Joe Romero 

5 - 51 

    
 4. Financial & Single Audit Reports 2020-2021 (time certain 11:00 AM) 

ACTION: Approval 
Joanne Mathew 
Andy Maffia 
Kristen Guzman 

52-167 

    
V. INFORMATION & DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
  

 5. RFP for External Auditors Jared Ceja 
Joanne Mathew 

168-169 

   
 6. Update on Internal Controls  Jared Ceja  
    
VI. OPEN FORUM 

 
  

VII. ADJOURMENT Dr. David Speak  
    
    
    

    
   
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 

https://cpp.zoom.us/j/81862565683


Audit Committee Minutes  
 02-03-2021 

 
CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Audit Committee Meeting Minutes 
February 3, 2021  1:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Dr. David Speak, Ruby Suchecki, Cynthia Nelson, John McGuthry, Joice Xiong, Dr. Phyllis Nelson  

and Joseph Simoneschi 

Staff: Jared Ceja, Jenny Dennis, Christine He and Joanne Mathew  
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
The meeting was called to order at 1:01 p.m. 
 
CONSENSUS ACTION ITEMS 
 
1.         Approval of Minutes 

The minutes of September 21, 2020 were approved by consent. A motion was made by Joe Simoneschi and seconded by Cynthia    
Nelson, Phyllis Nelson abstained – the motion passed.  

 
   GENERAL UPDATES 
 

2.      Foundation Updates 
Jared Ceja reported that things are going fairly well financially, all things considered. There are also notable successes such as the 
Holiday Ham Dinner program, Instant Access growth, and additional business expected from partnerships with the Vaccine Hub. 
Some members of the team are feeling fatigued from frequent zoom meetings, ongoing furloughs, and the lack of social interaction 
due to continued work from home. Our marketing team has created a virtual breakroom and some virtual COVID-friendly gatherings 
to help.   

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
3. Financial and Single Audit Reports and Tax Return 

 
Joanne Mathew reminded the committee that in 2017 the Foundation had issued an RFP (Request for Proposal) to perform the 
Foundation’s financial and single audits for fiscal years 2017 through 2022 to 11 firms. Seven firms responded including Aldrich 
CPA’s, which was the firm that was finally selected. Fiscal year 2020-2021 will be the fourth year of their engagement and the 
estimated total cost of these services is under $80,000. In addition to the financial audit, tax return and single audit, any consulting 
necessary regarding the implementation of the lease standard (GASB-87) will also be billed. It was suggested and agreed that an 
amendment to the resolution be made for additional internal control testing to be performed as part of the annual audit.   
 
A motion was made by Cynthia Nelson to retain Aldrich CPA to perform the financial audit, single audit, and to prepare the tax 
returns for the fiscal year ending 2021, and for the resolution to be presented to the Board of Directors for approval. The motion was 
seconded by Joe Simoneschi and approved unanimously.  

 
4.       External Child Care Center Audit 

 Joanne Mathew detailed the annual child care audit as required by the California Department of Education. This is the sixth year 
engaging GYL Decauwer, LLP. An RFP will commence in 2021/2022 for future services. The estimated cost of the audit services is 
$15,900.  

 
    A motion was made by Joe Simoneschi, and seconded by Joice Xiong to retain GYL Decauwer, LLP to perform the Child Care Audit 

for fiscal year ending June 30, 2021, and for the resolution to be presented to the Board of Directors at its regularly scheduled 
meeting for approval.    

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
5.  CSU Audit & Advisory Services Support 

This is a requested advisory review, not an audit. Their help was requested to verify and strength fiscal policies and practices that 
are already in place. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 1:45 p.m. 

 
  

Dr. David Speak, Chair 
Audit Committee 



Executive Director’s Report

September 16, 2021

Audit Committee



Student Savings on IA Course Materials vs Traditional

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

$1,000,000

Fall 2019 Spring 2020 Fall 2020 Spring 2021 Fall 2021



Memorandum   
 
Date:  September 16, 2021 
 
To:  Audit Committee 
  Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
From:  Joanne Mathew 
  Director of Financial Services/CFO   
 
Subject: 2020-2021 STATE PRESCHOOL PROGRAM AUDIT 
 
GYL LLP has completed the audit of the State Preschool Program grants from the 
California Department of Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.  Joe Romero, 
Partner will present the following audit reports and the results as follows: 
 

1. Communication to the Audit Committee and the Board on Significant 
Audit Matters during fieldwork.  
 

2. Financial Statements with Supplementary Information for the year 
ended June 30, 2021  
 

3. Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

 
PROPOSED ACTION: 
Management recommends that the Audit Committee accept GYL’s State Preschool 
Program Audit Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 and requests the above 
report be presented to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Audit Committee accepts GYL’s State Preschool Program 
Audit Report and forwards the Report to the Board of Directors for review and approval 
at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
Passed and adopted this 16th day of September 2021. 
 
 
 
By: __     __________________________ 
 David Speak, Chair                           
 Audit Committee 

 



Government Auditing Standards

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices  

Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) 

DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit  

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Disagreements with Management  

Management Representations  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants  

Other Audit Findings or Issues  

DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



Adjustment to State Contracts in the Current Year 

 

For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



Government Auditing Standards

DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



Government Auditing Standards, 

DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



Other Information

,

California Department of 
Education Audit Guide 

Government Auditing Standards, 

Government Auditing Standards 

DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions 

DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



D
R

AF
T

F o
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y



DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
cu

ss
io

n 
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

ees
O

nl
y

ees
 O

nl
y

es
O

nl
y

es
 O

nl
y

es
 O

nl
y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Fo

rD
is

cu
ss

io
n

Fo
rD

is
cu

ss
io

n
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y
Pu

rp
os

es
O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Fo

rD
is

cu
ss

io
n

Fo
rD

is
cu

ss
io

n
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y
Pu

rp
os

es
O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Fo

rD
is

cu
ss

io
n

Fo
rD

is
cu

ss
io

n
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y
Pu

rp
os

es
O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Fo

rD
is

cu
ss

io
n

Fo
rD

is
cu

ss
io

n
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y
Pu

rp
os

es
O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Fo

rD
is

cu
ss

io
n

Fo
rD

is
cu

ss
io

n
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y
Pu

rp
os

es
O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Fo

rD
is

cu
ss

io
n

Fo
rD

is
cu

ss
io

n
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y
Pu

rp
os

es
O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Fo

rD
is

cu
ss

io
n

Fo
rD

is
cu

ss
io

n
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y
Pu

rp
os

es
O

nl
y

Pu
rp

os
es

O
nl

y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
cu

ss
io

n 
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

ees
O

nl
y

ees
 O

nl
y

es
O

nl
y

es
 O

nl
y

es
 O

nl
y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

p
y

p
y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

p
y

p
y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

p
y

p
y



AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

p
y

p
y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

p
y

p
y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
cu

ss
io

n 
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

ees
O

nl
y

ees
 O

nl
y

es
O

nl
y

es
 O

nl
y

es
 O

nl
y



D
R

AF
T

AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

p
y

p
y



AF
T

AF
T

Fo
r D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
Pu

rp
os

es
 O

nl
y

p
y

p
y



DRAFT DRAFTDRAFT
For Discussion FF Di iFF Di iFor Discussion For Discussion 

p yp yPurposes OnlyP p y



GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 

deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Government Auditing Standards. 

DRAFT 
For Discussion 
Purposes Only



Memorandum   
 
Date:  September 16, 2021 
 
To:  Audit Committee 
  Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
From:  Joanne Mathew 
  Director of Financial Services/CFO 
 
Subject: 2020-2021 EXTERNAL AUDIT AND SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS 

 
Aldrich has completed the financial and single audits of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. The Foundation received an unmodified financial 
statement opinion on both reports.   

Andy Maffia, Partner at Aldrich, will present the following reports along with their required 
disclosures: 

• Independent Auditors’ Report and Financial Statements 

• Single Audit Reports 

PROPOSED ACTION: 
Management is requesting the Audit Committee accept Aldrich’s unmodified opinion upon 
the Foundation’s Financial and Single Audit Reports for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2021 and requests the above reports be presented to the Board at its next regularly 
scheduled meeting. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Audit Committee accepts Aldrich’s unmodified opinion of the 
Foundation’s Financial and Single Audit Reports and forwards the Reports to the Board 
of Directors for review and approval at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
Passed and adopted this 16th day of September 2021. 
 
 
 
By:      ____________________________ 
      David Speak, Chair                           
      Audit Committee 
 

 













































































































































































































 

   

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
Single Audit Report 

Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 

 

DRAFT



 

2 
 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
Single Audit Report 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
Table of Contents 
 

Page 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report 1 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on  
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 2 
 
Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and  
on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance 4 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 6 
 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 9 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 10 
 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 13 
 
Corrective Action Plan 14 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
To the Audit Committee of 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
 
Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
We have audited the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, 
Inc. (a nonprofit organization), for the year ended June 30, 2021 and the related notes (the financial statement). 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of a financial 
statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statement is free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statement in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statement. 
 
We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 
  
Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statement referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the expenditures of 
federal awards of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. for the year ended June 30, 2021, in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
September XX, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Audit Committee 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. (a 
nonprofit organization) (the Foundation), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2021, the 
related statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements; and have issued our report thereon dated September XX, 2021 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Foundation’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not 
been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that 
we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2021-001 that we consider to be a significant 
deficiencies. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters,  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions 
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 
 
Foundation’s Response to Findings 
The Foundation’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. The Foundation’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

DRAFT



 

3 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, continued 

 
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Foundation’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
September XX, 2021 

DRAFT



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

 
 
To the Audit Committee 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Cal Poly 
Pomona Foundation, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. Cal Poly Pomona 
Foundation, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its 
federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.’s major 
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.’s compliance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. 
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.’s compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
Other Matters 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance which are required to be reported in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs as items 2021-002 and 2021-003. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified 
with respect to these matters. 
 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Inc.’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Ca Poly Pomona Foundation Inc.’s response was 
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 
 

DRAFT



 

5 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE, CONTINUED 
 

 
Report on Internal Control over Compliance,  
Management of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Inc.’s internal control over 
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal 
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Inc.’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that have not been identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance 
that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we did identity certain deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2021-002 and 
2012-003, that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 
 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Inc.’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our 
audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Cal Poly Pomona Foundation 
Inc.’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on the response. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Grant 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
September XX, 2021 
 

DRAFT



 

See independent auditors’ report.  9 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of Cal Poly 
Pomona Foundation, Inc. and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
 
 
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Inc. did not elect to use the 10% de minimus cost rate as covered in the Uniform 
Guidance 2 CFR section 200.414 Indirect Costs. 
 
 
 

DRAFT



 

See independent auditors’ report.  10 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 
 
Financial Statements 
 
Type of auditors’ report issued:    Unmodified 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  Yes 
Material weakness(es) identified?   No 

 
Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No 
 
Federal Awards 
 
Internal control over major program: 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified?  Yes 
Material weakness(es) identified?   No 

 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 

for major programs    Unmodified 
 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required 

to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 
2 CFR section 200.516(a)?    Yes 

 
Identification of major programs: 
 

CFDA Number  Name of Federal Program or Cluster 
   

Various  Research and Development Cluster 

 
Dollar threshold used to distinguish  
    Between Type A and Type B programs:  $750,000 
 
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee 
    under the Uniform Guidance 2 CFR section 200.520 No 
 
 
Section II – Financial Statement Findings 
 
2021-001  Significant Deficiency over Preparation of the SEFA and Grants and Contracts Reporting 
 
Criteria:   Per the Uniform Grant Guidance section 200.302  “Financial management. (b) The financial 

management system of each non-Federal entity must provide for the following: (1) 
Identification, in its accounts, of all Federal awards received and expended and the Federal 
programs under which they were received. Federal program and Federal award identification 
must include, as applicable, the Assistance Listings title and number, Federal award 
identification number and year, name of the Federal agency, and name of the pass-through 
entity, if any.”  Reconciliations of amounts receivable and deferred revenue must also be 
performed timely and in accordance with revenue recognition standards.   

 
 

DRAFT



See independent auditors’ report. 11 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Condition:   There were 6 awards for which expenditure amounts were not included in the SEFA provided 
by the client for audit.  The total amount of expenditures was $132,281.  There were also 3 
awards for which no CFDA or Assistance Listing number was included in the SEFA.  The 
schedule provided by the client to reconcile grants receivable and deferred revenue did not 
reconcile to the trial balance or the SEFA and multiple versions of the reconciliation were 
provided until these errors were corrected. 

Cause: There was mid-year turnover in the personnel within the Grants and Contracts department 
during the fiscal year.  Training had been provided to the new personnel related to the regular 
monitoring and tracking of grant awards but there is more training needed related to the year- 
end reporting procedures.   

Effect:   This resulted in the audit team performing the major program determination twice to ensure that 
the major program selected remained appropriate.  It also added additional time to the audit 
due to receiving multiple versions of an incorrect reconciliation.   

Recommendation:  We recommend that additional training be provided to the Grants and Contracts Manager on 
year end procedures as well as general compliance with federal awards. 

Views of responsible officials:  The Foundation will be using the services of independent consultants, established 
in the field, to do the necessary training on year end procedures with the Grants and Contracts 
Manager. In addition, they will be engaged to assist with enhancing the financial system’s 
application to provide greater accuracy and efficiency in SEFA, and Grant and Contracts 
reporting. 

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

2021-002   Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance- Allowable Costs 
Program:  R&D Program 

Criteria:  Per Uniform Grant Guidance (2 CFR 200.430(i))  “Charges to Federal awards for salaries and 
wages must be based on records that accurately reflect the work performed. These records 
must:  (i) Be supported by a system of internal control which provides reasonable assurance 
that the charges are accurate, allowable, and properly allocated.”  Management identified that 
the key control over allowable costs and activities is the approval of the program administrator.   

Condition:  From our sample of 96 employee records, 33 of the timesheets did not have approval of the 
program administrator.  All of the timesheets, except 1, had documented approval, it was just 
not by the program administrator.  One timesheet in our selection did not have any documented 
approval.   

Cause:   The payroll system allows for the approver to be assigned for the employee.  In the items 
without proper approval, the system was not set up to have the program administrator approve 
the timesheets.  

Effect:  Payroll cost are allowable for the grant awards but there are specific requirements in each 
award regarding the personnel allowed to charge time to the program.  Without the approval of 
an individual who is knowledgeable of the terms of each specific grant, there is a risk that time 
could be charged to a program that is not allowable. 

Questioned costs:  None 

DRAFT



 

See independent auditors’ report.  12 

 
CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
Year Ended June 30, 2021 
 
 
Context:   During the audit of the R&D program we selected a sample of 40 payroll transactions to test the 

controls over compliance and compliance.  In those 40 transactions were 96 individual 
timesheets for employees working on the various grant programs.  

 
Recommendation: We recommend that the program administrators be assigned as the approver of the 

timesheets for any individual working on their program.  If they do not have the capacity or 
ability to perform this function then we recommend that they assign the authority, in writing, to 
another individual who is knowledgeable of the terms and conditions for their specific grant 
award.   

 
Views of responsible officials: The payroll system in use has the ability to allow program administrators to not only 

approve timesheets, but also to assign authority for approvals to other individuals. Action has 
been initiated as of the date of this letter, in discussion and collaboration with department 
supervisors and program administrators, to customize the system to track the approvals and 
delegations for this purpose. 

 
2021-003   Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance – Equipment and Real 

Property Management 
Program: R&D Program 
 
Criteria:  Per the Uniform Grant Guidance (2 CFR 200.313(d)(2)) “A physical inventory of the property 

must be taken and the results reconciled with the property records at least once every two 
years.” 

 
Condition:  A physical inventory of equipment has not been taken since 2018.   
 
Cause:   The campus was operating at a reduced level due to the Coronavirus pandemic.  There was 

limited access to the various buildings where the equipment is maintained. 
 
Effect:   As many of the employees of the campus were working remote and there has been limited 

ability to oversee and monitor the equipment, there is a risk that it may have been misplaced 
or be in disrepair and management would not be aware. 

 
Questioned costs:  None 
 
Context:   There are several federal award programs with property and equipment purchased utilizing 

federal funds.  This finding impacts all awards with equipment purchases.  OMB issued 
Memo M-21-20 which included wording regarding a possible extension for 12 months  
"Awarding agencies may provide grantees up to a 12-month extension for the biennial 
physical inventory of equipment purchased under a Federal award" and that the extension 
was not obtained by the Foundation. 

 
Recommendation:  We recommend that a full inventory of all property and equipment be completed as soon as 

possible. 
 
Views of responsible officials:  The Foundation began full physical inventory of all property and equipment 

purchased using federal funds beginning in August 2021 when facilities began to reopen. The 
inventory count is on track to be completed in October 2021. 

 
 

DRAFT



See independent auditors’ report. 13 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings  
Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Section IV – Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

2020-001 

Criteria:  Management should have controls in place over cash disbursements that prevent 
misappropriation of assets to the greatest extent possible. 

Condition: During the fiscal year, a series of events occurred that made the accounting department aware of 
fiscal impropriety occurring within an enterprise unit of the Foundation. After appropriate 
investigations, it was concluded that material amount of misappropriation of assets took place 
over a span of time. There were significant internal control weaknesses that allowed for this 
material misappropriation of assets to occur. These internal control weaknesses largely related to 
the ability of an enterprise manager to sign off on AP Check Listings and enter check runs into 
the system, but also related to the employee’s ability to create vendors in the accounting system 
from when this employee worked in a different department. 

Status:   Management has implemented controls related to vendors and disbursements to address the 
deficiencies that allowed for the impropriety. 

DRAFT



September XX, 2021 

Corrective Action Plan Response on Single Audit in accordance with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200, of 
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 

Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2021 

Financial Statement Findings (Section II): 

2021-001 Significant Deficiency over Preparation of the SEFA and Grants and Contracts Reporting 

Recommendation: Additional training be provided to the Grants and Contracts Manager on year end 
procedures as well as general compliance with federal awards. 

Action Taken: The Foundation will be using the services of independent consultants, established in the 
field, to do the necessary training on year end procedures with the Grants and Contracts Manager. In 
addition, they will be engaged to assist with enhancing the financial system’s application to provide 
greater accuracy and efficiency in SEFA, and Grant and Contracts reporting.  

2021-002 Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance – Allowable Costs 

Recommendation: Program administrators be assigned as the approver of the timesheets for any 
individual working on their program. If they do not have the capacity or ability to perform this function 
then they assign the authority, in writing, to another individual who is knowledgeable of the terms and 
conditions for their specific grant award. 

Action Taken: The payroll system in use has the ability to allow program administrators to not only 
approve timesheets, but also to assign authority for approvals to other individuals. Action has been 
initiated as of the date of this letter, in discussion and collaboration with department supervisors and 
program administrators, to customize the system to track the approvals and delegations for this 
purpose.  

. 

DRAFT



2021-003 Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Compliance – Equipment and Real Property 
Management 

Recommendation: A full inventory of all property and equipment be completed as soon as possible.  

Action Taken: The Foundation began full physical inventory of all property and equipment purchased 
using federal funds beginning in August 2021 when facilities began to reopen. The inventory count is on 
track to be completed in October 2021. 

 

For further information or questions, please reach out to me at (909) 869-2950 or jmathew@cpp.edu. 

Sincerely, 

Joanne Mathew 
Director of Financial Services/  
Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
 
CC:  Jared Ceja, Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer 
 Andy Maffia, Aldrich CPAs + Advisors, LLP 
 

 

DRAFT



 
 
 

 
Memorandum 
 
Date:  September 14, 2021 
 
To:  Audit Committee 
  Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
From: Joanne Mathew 
  Director of Financial Services/CFO 
 
Subject: CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM SELECTION FOR  

FINANCIAL, SINGLE AND CHILDCARE AUDITS – FY2022 to FY2026 
 

The California Education Code 89900(a) requires the selection of a certified public accountant 
by each auxiliary organization and according to Policy 116, the Board of Directors shall have the 
benefit of the advice and counsel of at least one licensed certified public accountant. 
 
Accordingly, the Foundation will be issuing a Request for Proposal (RFP) to perform the annual 
financial, single and childcare audits for the five fiscal years 2021-2022 through 2025-2026 to 
Certified Public Accounting firms qualified to conduct audits for Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) organizations.   
 
A selection committee consisting of board members and management will evaluate each firm’s 
proposal based on the following criteria:   
 

1. Total fees charged for each of the five years of the engagement  
2. Firm’s demonstrated experience in the audit of California public agencies and not-

for-profit organizations with enterprise activities 
3. Firm’s demonstrated experience with compliance standards 2 CFR 200 relating to 

federal programs and single audit requirements 
4. Ability to meet the specific timelines and meetings 
5. Reference checks 

 
Each evaluation item is weighted based on the importance of the criteria.   
 
After the initial review of each candidate, reference checks will be performed based on selection 
committee’s approved questions. Upon completion of the reference checks, the selection 
committee will decide the qualified firm to perform these audits.     
 
Per the CSU Auxiliary Organizations Compliance Guide policy number 13175, prior to executing 
the audit firm’s engagement letter, the Chancellor’s Office will review and approve the 
qualifications of the external audit firm.   



 
 
 
 

CPA Firms to include in Request for Proposal Process 
 

 

List of firms compiled using the CSU Chancellor’s Office approved Southern California firms:   
 

 Aldrich CPAs and Advisors LLP       
5946 Priestly Drive, Suite 200 
Carlsbad, CA  92008-8848 

 
 Grant Thornton, LLP 

 515 South Flower Street, 7th Floor 
 Los Angeles, CA  90071-2201 
 

 Guzman & Gray 
 4510 E. Pacific Coast Highway, Suite 270 
 Long Beach, CA  90804 
 

 KPMG, LLP       
 20 Pacifica, Suite 700 
 Irvine, CA 92618  
 

 Vasin, Heyn & Company 
 5000 N. Parkway Calabasas, Suite 301  
 Calabasas, CA  91302 
 

 Clifton Larson Allen, LLP   
 2210 E. Route 66 
 Glendora, CA  91740 
 

 Windes, Inc. 
 111 West Ocean Blvd, 22nd Floor 
 Long Beach, CA  90802 
 

 Cohn Reznick LLP 
 1900 Avenue of the Stars 
 Los Angeles, CA  90067 
 

 GYL CPAs and Advisors (Childcare Audit only)  
 4120 Concours, Suite 100 
 Ontario, CA 91764 

 
 
 
 


	00_Audit - Agenda 091621
	01 Audit minutes 2-3-2021
	CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
	Audit Committee Meeting Minutes
	February 3, 2021  1:00 p.m.
	CALL TO ORDER
	The meeting was called to order at 1:01 p.m.
	CONSENSUS ACTION ITEMS
	INFORMATION ITEMS
	The meeting adjourned at 1:45 p.m.

	02 ED Report 09-15-21
	03a State Preschool Program Resolution 2020-2021
	03b Child Care Audit 1
	03c Child Care Financials
	04a Fin&Single Audit Resolution 2020-21
	04b2 CPPF Board report draft
	04c2 Draft Financial Statements CPPF 6-30-21
	04d CPPF Single Audit report draft
	5a RFP Process-External Auditors_cover ltr
	5b List of CPA Firms_CSU Approved



